WEST LINDSEY DISTRICT COUNCIL

MINUTES of the Meeting of the Challenge and Improvement Committee held in the Council Chamber - The Guildhall on 2 April 2019 commencing at 6.30 pm.

Present:	Councillor Mrs Angela White (Vice-Chairman, in the Chair) Councillor Mrs Diana Rodgers Councillor Thomas Smith Councillor Mrs Anne Welburn Councillor Steve England
In Attendance: Alan Robinson Ele Snow	Strategic Lead Governance and People/Monitoring Officer Democratic and Civic Officer
Also in Attendance:	Andy Hill, Operational Manager, Thames Ambulance Services Ltd
Apologies:	Councillor Paul Howitt-Cowan Councillor Lewis Strange Councillor Bruce Allison Councillor David Bond Councillor Mrs Angela Lawrence Councillor Mrs Jessie Milne Councillor Roger Patterson
Membership:	Councillor Steve England was appointed as substitute for Councillor Mrs Jessie Milne, for this meeting only

71 CHAIRMAN'S WELCOME

Councillor Mrs Angela White opened the meeting and welcomed those present, including Mr Andy Hill from the Thames Ambulance Services Ltd (TASL). It was explained that both the Chairman Councillor Howitt-Cowan and Vice Chairman Councillor Strange had sent their apologies and so Councillor White took the Chair for this meeting.

72 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting of the Challenge and Improvement Committee held on 19 February 2019 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

73 MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest made at this stage of the meeting.

74 MATTERS ARISING SCHEDULE

The Committee gave consideration to the Matters Arising Schedule, setting out the current position of previously agreed actions, as at 25 March 2019.

The Democratic and Civic Officer explained there was one outstanding matter which would be carried into the new Civic Year. With no further comment it was

RESOLVED that the Matters Arising Schedule as at 25 March 2019 be received and noted.

75 PRESENTATION ITEM - INVITE TO TASL BY C&I

The Chairman again welcomed Andy Hill, Operational Manager from Thames Ambulance Services Ltd (TASL) and invited him to address the Committee. Members heard that there had been several concerns highlighted, most recently through a CQC report, however there had been significant steps taken to improve the service and address the concerns raised. Examples of this included amending the shift rotas to maximise the use of staff resources and also improving the computer software used to manage the daily workload.

It was explained that the control centre had been relocated from its city centre location to one on the peripheries of the city. The importance of a suitably located and resourced control centre was emphasised as this would be the point from where all other operations were managed. There had also been an increased focus on training and development with rotas arranged to help manage absence due to training requirements and it was highlighted that the service was working proactively to resolve those issues which had been identified by the CQC report.

Questions from Members had focussed on three main areas – reasons for difficulties within the service and how to improve performance, staff wellbeing including working hours and training requirements, and the concerns around cleanliness of work bases and vehicles. The Operational Manager for TASL explained that there were several pressures on the service that were out of their control, such as mis-information provided by the acute care trusts when requesting transport, the need to transport patients not only out of the area but to anywhere in the country and geographical issues whereby the area covered is mainly rural with a lack of motorway network.

The Committee heard that, as well as the rota alterations to enable staff to attend development sessions, there had been a concerted effort to provide training with regards to paediatric and bariatric transport. All staff were now trained with regards to transporting children and one in three staff were trained for bariatric patients. This was in line with CQC recommendations. It was also emphasised that, although the service did not transport patients who were subject to any Section of the Mental Health Act, all staff had received increased training in mental health awareness and were kept informed of the relevant pathways both through the induction training and regular refresher sessions.

In addition to the improved training, there had also been significant work undertaken in relation to the rota system. It was highlighted that there was not considered to be a staff shortage, however it had been necessary to re-align staff hours with fleet availability and

peak transport hours, whilst also reducing overtime hours and ensuring allocated break times were adhered to as far as possible. It was explained that the updated rota system had proved a positive improvement, with breaks and driving hours being much more closely monitored and protected as far as possible. The nature of the work, although not an emergency service, was still time critical and it was acknowledged there would be times when unplanned work would take precedence. There had been a noticeable change, however, in that breaks had not previously been allocated or protected, whereas they were now scheduled into the daily work plan.

Members were also told about the updates to the computer software that were having a significant impact on service efficiency. As a result of the largely rural areas covered, crews had found that their work planner on their handheld devices was not updating correctly, due to poor or non-existent network coverage, and this had led to delays and miscommunications. By working closely with the software provider, changes had been made whereby network coverage was much more reliable, crews were receiving their work plans on a real time basis and this made the service as a whole increasingly efficient and reliable. Any devices which were not working had been replaced with new devices.

The Committee questioned the practicalities of transporting multiple patients with differing clinical needs and how several drop off points would extend the journey and make it increasingly uncomfortable for those patients in poor health. The Operational Manager agreed that there would be situations where it was not prudent to transport a patient in such a way, for example late at night or when arrival time would be significantly later, however, there was an expectation on the acute care providers to adequately assess the clinical needs of the patient and request transport that was appropriate to their needs. For example, it was not uncommon for a vehicle designated for a stretcher-bound patient to arrive and find the patient walking unaided. It was acknowledged that the pressure on acute care providers to discharge patients then created a pressure on non-emergency transport providers to move the patient and it had been key for TASL to open up communications with the acute care providers in order for all points of contact to be as efficient and accurate as possible.

Members enquired as to what was in place to ensure patients arrived for their appointments on time or did not miss appointments, as had been happening previously. It was explained that when needed, TASL would make use of third party transport providers to ensure that patients were not disadvantaged in any way. The cost of using other parties was borne by TASL. The issue of vehicle breakdown was also addressed, with the Operational Manager confirming that all vehicles were well maintained but there was prompt access to spare vehicles as well as a nationwide recovery/repair agreement in place. Members were assured that contingency plans were in place for all possibilities.

The final area of concern had been the hygiene and cleanliness of the vehicles and the transport hub locations. The Committee heard that these problems had been addressed and, on the advice of the CQC, TASL had undertaken a cleaning contract with a company with significant experience of cleaning and maintaining healthcare related premises. There had also been work undertaken with the landlords of the relevant properties and the issues had been resolved. It was emphasised that TASL had worked closely with the CQC in terms of addressing the concerns raised in their report and there was dedication across the organisation to rectify and improve their performance.

At the conclusion of the presentation and questions, the Chairman thanked Mr Hill for his

time, his clear explanation of the issues faced by the organisation and the steps they were taking to address it. The Committee heard that there was due to be a further CQC inspection within the next three months and they expressed their interest in hearing from Mr Hill again with the results of the second inspection. It was agreed this could be considered for the work plan in the next Civic Year.

On behalf of the Committee, the Chairman again thanked Mr Hill for his time.

Note: The meeting adjourned at 7.19pm for Mr Hill to leave the meeting and was reconvened at 7.21pm.

76 PROGRESS AND DELIVERY REPORT - PERIOD 3 2018/19

The Monitoring Officer introduced a report regarding the Progress and Delivery Report for Period 3 of 2018/19. He highlighted that the purpose for the Committee was not to review the full report but to consider whether the policy committees had dealt with the original report in sufficient detail. It was highlighted that previously requested information about the enforcement services had been included as an appendix within the report. There was discussion regarding the measures used within the reports and that the Progress and Delivery Working Group had recently met with the Head of Paid Service to review the measures for the coming year. It was suggested whether there would be scope to employ an Officer to focus solely on the enforcement of planning conditions and the Monitoring Officer noted this could be discussed with the Service Manager.

There were comments from Members regarding specific enforcement issues raised in their wards and it was acknowledged that communication was key to managing customer expectations. It was requested whether there could be a 'rule book' for Members to refer to as a basic guide to the rules and regulations of enforcement, in order to assist Members with dealing with constituent queries. It was confirmed there would be further training in the new Civic Year and this could be considered.

RESOLVED that Members be assured that suitable challenge is being made to the information contained in the report.

77 C&I ANNUAL REPORT

Members were asked to give consideration to the draft version of the Chairman's Annual Report, which would be presented at Annual Council on 20 May 2019. Comments, amendments or additions were welcomed for inclusion in the final version of the report, however, with no comments offered by Members it was

RESOLVED that the Challenge and Improvement Annual Report be supported for submission to Annual Council in May 2019.

78 FORWARD PLAN

The forward plan as far as May 2020 was presented to Members for consideration, it was

acknowledged that, as the last meeting of the Civic Year, there would be no items identified at this stage. With no further comment it was

RESOLVED that the forward plan be received and noted.

79 COMMITTEE WORKPLAN

The Committee gave consideration to the work plan for the coming months, it was explained by the Monitoring Officer that at the first meeting of the Committee in the new Civic Year, further items for the work plan would be identified.

RESOLVED that the work plan be noted.

The meeting concluded at 7.43 pm.

Chairman